Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018




Contents Page
Chairman’s Statement 2
Board Members 4
Directors’ Report 5
Investment Manager’'s Report 12
Independent Auditor's Report 14
Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income 18
Statement of Changes in Equity 19
Statement of Financial Position 20
Statement of Cash Flows 21
Notes to the Financial Statements 22
Unaudited Portfolio Statement 41
Management and Administration 44
Unaudited Report of the UK Investment Manager Relating to Matters under the 46
Alternative Investment Fund Managers' Directive
Notice of AGM 48
Form of Proxy 51

Annual Report and Accounts




Chairman’s Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2018

For the year to 31st December 2018 the Company's net asset value fell by 37.7 per cent as small cap gold and
silver stocks underwent a torrid period particularly towards the end of the year. The investment managers’ report
on pages 12 to 13 detail the background to this in more detail. At the time of writing we have seen somewhat of a
recovery with the net asset value increasing by 10.33 per cent since the year end.

The Company's share price fell by 44.1 per cent over the year with the discount being 28.6 per cent at the end of
December. The Subscription Share price was 4.5p at the end of December — the next exercise date is on 29
November 2019.

A number of recent events in the gold sector will likely dictate near term movements in the price that are different
from the usual cocktail. This mix of factors still include geopolitical tensions, massive global debt, Populism,
Brexit, the Eurozone implosion, China's real estate bubble, trade wars plus de-dollarization. All need to be taken
into serious consideration when navigating this volatile space. | could re-state the many variables covered in my
last two statements that are still relevant but | feel the most interesting topic demanding focus is the latest ability
of the Central Banks to count gold as cash or equivalent on their balance sheets. By utilizing this reserve they
can now create monetary inflation as a way to increase the gold price and build up equity in line with the vast
debt mountain in the system.

Economists say that this is the reason Central Banks have been stocking up on gold, last year adding 74% more
to their reserves than they did in 2017. This is the highest annual purchase since 1971, which significantly is the
year the USA came off the Gold Standard.

Known as the ‘Basel III’ rule imposed by the Bank of International Settlements (BIS) on 29 March 2019, it
means that the Central Banks will now be motivated to increase rather than suppress the gold price which should
therefore lead to gradually higher levels. By way of explanation, in recent years Central Banks have been
deliberately supplying an excess of gold derivatives (synthetics and paper gold) to scare sellers into liquidating
positions on variable futures contracts. The more gold future prices fell the more investors sold the synthetics
causing a self-fulfilling spiral down that could then be exploited by Central Banks to accumulate physical gold at
ever lower prices.

This is not conjecture. As one notable industry authority said, it is now widely admitted that this strategy was
indeed adopted to depress the gold price thus enabling countries and their Central Banks to buy and build up
their physical reserves at lower and lower prices. Larger quantities of artificially created synthetic gold triggered
layer upon layer of lower priced derivatives, as uninformed private investors were scared out of their positions.
Much of this activity was generated via Exchange Traded Funds which were not even backed by allocated
precious metals. Large quantities of physical gold purchased through artificially-induced price falls can now be
officially recorded on Central Bank's balance sheets as an unencumbered asset waiting to be leveraged in order
to once again print new money i.e. more Quantitative Easing, in effect re-monetizing gold.

As a result, the tightness in the London gold market (for physical delivery) is becoming critical. This shortening
supply plus the lack of new gold discoveries (the metal is naturally limited; it cannot be printed and needs to be
mined) point to a long awaited floor under current price levels. Hence both JP Morgan and Goldman Sachs are
suddenly recommending gold to their clients and going long themselves as principals.

The world's total debt has now topped more than $247 trillion USD, which is much higher than at the height of
the financial crisis in 2008, and has now forced the IMF to sound alarm bells about excessive global borrowing.

The US Federal Reserve are not now expected to raise interest rates this year. They have turned dovish as the
yield curve has now become inverted (apparently the first time since 2007). An inverted interest rate curve is
where the yield on the 10-year Treasuries falls below the 3-monthly T-bills, which is regarded as a reliable
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

recession warning signal. An increase in Central Bank gold reserves could be seen as strong evidence of
growing distrust in the dominance of the US Dollar and the credit system associated with it.

It is not totally surprising that governments would have much to lose by agreeing to a new Gold Standard. The
debt mountains they have built up are so enormous that no government is going to give up its ability to print its
way out of trouble by fixing an exchange rate system. Remember, gold can never be created out of thin air, no
matter what financial alchemists tell you!

With a recession possibly looming the Federal Reserve may need to make a monetary U-turn including cutting
rates, ending Quantitative Tightening and reverting to another period of Quantitative Easing, thus leading to a
softer US Dollar.

Gold's perfect storm investment thesis, argues that we are at the beginning of a new multi-year bull market. This
view is also supported by the fact that the relative performance of gold versus the S&P 500 is bottoming out. The
M&A wave amongst the miners might also be signalling an upswing or end to the bear market. The ‘peak gold'
factor will additionally not harm the case for bullion’s brighter prospects.

In the stock market for gold and silver equities, the bulls and bears are still engaged in their usual tussle with
neither getting the upper hand. According to a survey, geopolitical tensions (mainly the fear of events in China
and Russia) was the biggest factor likely to drive investors towards safe haven assets.

Year to date gold is up in almost every major currency apart from the USD (in fact in AUD and CAD gold trades
close to all-ime highs). Yet investor sentiment has still been low with gold only representing 2% of all global
assets. It's the world's most polarising asset; like Marmite, people either love it or hate it.

Finally, to the bears who say gold is not money, why does the USA hold 8000 tonnes of it, why does the IMF
have 3000 tonnes, why has Russia quadrupled its reserves in the last 10 years and why does China, which has
tripled its reserves over the past decade, buy every ounce it can get its hands on (thanks to the power of the
Asian gold exchanges which are growing rapidly)?

Our fund's portfolio is well positioned to benefit from a sustained gold share rally and | will be adding to my
shareholding at the current attractive discount to the N.A.V.

Malcolm Burne
Chairman
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Board Members
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors have overall responsibility for the Company's activities including the review of its activities and
performance.

The Directors of the Company at the date of signing the accounts, with the exception of Kaare Foy who resigned
from the Board as of 17 April 2018, all of whom are non-executive, are listed below.

Malcolm Burne, is a former stockbroker and financial journalist with The Financial Times. He has controlled and
managed fund management, venture capital and investment banking companies in London, Australia, Hong Kong
and North America. He has been a director of more than 20 companies, many of which have been in the mineral
resource and gold exploration fields. In 1997, he founded Golden Prospect plc and was executive chairman until
2007 when the company changed its name to Ambrian Capital pic. In addition, he was executive chairman of the
Australian Bullion Company (Pty) Limited, which at the time was Australia's leading gold dealer and member of the
Sydney Futures Exchange.

Kaare Foy, was an executive director of Great Panther Silver Limited, a silver exploration and mining company
based in Vancouver, from 1994 until the beginning of 2012 and was its Executive Chairman when it reached a
market capitalisation of more than US$600 million in 2011. He is currently chairman of Viscount Mining Limited,
and has been heavily involved with silver and gold projects in North America, and worked with Malcolm Burne at
the Australian Bullion Company (Pty) Limited during the 1980s. Kaare Foy resigned as a Director on 17 April 2018,

Robert King, is a non-executive director of a number of open and closed ended investment funds and companies
including Chenavari Capital Solutions Limited, Tufton Oceanic Assets Limited and Weiss Korea Opportunities Fund
Ltd. He was a director of Cannon Asset Management Limited and its associated companies from October 2007 to
February 2011. Prior to this, he was a Director of Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services
(Guernsey) Limited (formerly Guernsey International Fund Managers Limited) where he had worked from 1990 to
2007. He has been in the offshore finance industry since 1986 specialising in administration and structuring of
offshore open and closed ended investment funds. Rob is British and resident in Guernsey.

Toby Birch, is an investment manager and non-executive director of South River (Guernsey) Limited which is
owned by a Chinese conglomerate. Prior to founding Guernsey Gold (which merged with Bullionrock in 2014) he
was the senior investment manager at the local branch of Bank Julius Baer. He then worked for Blackfish Capital
Holdings, the private investment arm of a single family office where he was lead manager of the Blackfish Capital
Exodus Fund, trading in precious metals and commodities. He was also a director of the Blackfish-Investec
Resources Special Situations Fund, investing in mining companies. Toby is a Chartered Wealth Manager and
Fellow of the Chartered Institute for Securities and Investments. He is a regular speaker on the conference circuit
covering financial megatrends, precious metals and monetary reform. He holds the HSK2 level proficiency test in
Mandarin.

Graeme Ross, was educated at Perth Academy and Dundee College of Technology in Scotland and qualified as
a Chartered Accountant with Arthur Young McClelland-Moores in 1984. He then moved to Jersey in the Channel
Islands and spent two years with KPMG on financial services audits before joining the embryonic fund
administration arm of Rawlinson & Hunter, Jersey in 1986, He was admitted to the Partnership of Rawlinson &
Hunter, Jersey in 1995 and was the Managing Director of the fund administration division from then until his retiral
at the end of 2016. Graeme has significant experience of the management, administration and oversight of all
types of collective investment vehicles and has served as a Director on open ended, closed ended and fimited
partnership vehicles investing in a wide variety of asset classes and sectors including many listed funds. Graeme
is a resident of Jersey. Graeme was appointed to the Board on 17 April 2018 as both a Director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee.
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors present their Report and the Audited Financial Statements of Golden Prospect Precious Metals
Limited (the ‘Company’) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company

The Company was registered in Guernsey on 16 October 2006 and is an authorised closed-ended investment
scheme under the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law 1987. The Company's Ordinary Shares
were admitted to the Official List of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange (‘CISX) on 24 June 2008.The CISX
rebranded to The International Stock Exchange (‘TISE') on 6 March 2017. Effective 21 September 2009, the
Ordinary Shares trade on the London Stock Exchange Electronic Trading Service SETS QX with code GPM.

Subscription Shares

On 22 December 2017 the Company issued, by way of bonus issue and on a one subscription share for every two
ordinary shares, 28,500,995 Subscription Shares. These were admitted to listing on TISE and they trade on the
London Stock Exchange Electronic Trading Services SETS QX. The subscription price is equal to the published
unaudited net asset value per ordinary share as at the close of business on 20 December 2017 plus a premium
depending on the year in which they are exercised. During the current reporting period the Company had allotted,
by way of an exercise of 12,305 subscription shares, 12,305 new ordinary shares of £0.001 each for cash, at a
price of 40.37p per share, raising a total of £4,967.49.

Shareholder information
Up to date information regarding the Company, including a daily announcement of Net Asset Value, can be found
on the Company's website, which is www.ncim.co.uk/gppm_top.php

Results and dividends

The Company's performance during the year is discussed in the Investment Manager's Report on page 12. The
results for the year are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 18. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: £ni).

Directors’ responsibilities statement
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union ('IFRS’).

The Directors are required by the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 to prepare Financial Statements for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the surplus or deficit
of the Company for that period.

In preparing those Financial Statements the Directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and

e prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Directors’ responsibilities statement (continued)
The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the Financial Statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and which enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements
comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Directors
The Directors of the Company who served during the year and to date are set out on page 4.

Directors’ interests
The Directors held the following interests in the share capital of the Company either directly or beneficially as at
31 December 2018, and as at the date of signing these Financial Statements:

Ordinary Subscription Ordinary Subscription

Shares Shares Shares Shares

Director 2018 2018 2017 2017
M Burne 537,500 268,750 437,500 218,750
R King 20,000 10,000 20,000 10,000
T Birch 50,000 25,000 50,000 25,000

G Ross - - -

The Directors who served in the year received the following fees:

2018 2017

Director £ £
M Burne * 16,000 15,000
K Foy ** 4,701 15,000
R King 16,000 15,000
T Birch 16,000 15,000
G Ross * 11,299 -
64,000 60,000

The amounts paid by the Company to the Directors were for services as non-executive Directors.
* Chairman
* K Foy - Chairman of the Audit Committee until 17 April 2018, at which point G Ross assumed this position.

Directors’ authority to buy back shares

As agreed at the Company AGM on 23 May 2018, and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended (the ‘Law’), the Company is authorised to make
market purchases of up to a maximum of 15 per cent of its existing issued ordinary Share Capital. This authority
is renewable annually. At the Annual General Meeting to take place on 22 May 2019 the Company will seek to
renew such authority and will seek to renew such authorities at annual general meetings thereafter.
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Directors’ authority to buy back shares (continued)

Any buy back of shares will be made subject to Guernsey law and within any guidelines established from time to
time by the Board and the making and timing of any buy backs will be at the absolute discretion of the Board and
not at the option of the Shareholders.

Purchases of shares will only be made through the market for cash. The minimum price (exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for the shares is £0.001 per share. The maximum price (exclusive of expenses) payable by the
Company for the shares will be no more than 5% above the average of the middle closing market quotations taken
from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List on each of the five business days before the closing purchase
is made.

During the year no shares (2017: no shares) were acquired by the Company under the above authority.

Board responsibilities and corporate governance

The Board has determined that no Director shall be considered non-independent as a consequence of their length
of tenure, as long as there are no other issues which would impact their independent status.

Mr Burne and Mr King are currently considered by the Board to be independent of the Company, despite serving
on the Board since the launch of the Fund. The Board's policy on tenure is that continuity and experience are
considered to add significantly to the strength of the Board and, as such, no limit on the overall length of service
of any of the Company's Directors, including the Chairman, is imposed. The Board confirm that alf Directors receive
the relevant training as necessary in relation to their on-going responsibilities in relation to the Company and the
independence of each non-executive director is regularly assessed, together with any changes to non-executive
directors interests, positions, affiliations, associations or relationships that could bear upon his or her
independence.

The Board has reviewed the position and relationships of all directors in office as at 31 December 2018 and is
satisfied that no director has any contract for services or any other connection, paid or otherwise, with any related
party of the Company. :

The Board of Directors is responsible for the corporate governance of the Company. The Board will ensure that
the Company's operations are conducted reasonably and within the framework of all applicable laws, regulations,
rules, guidelines and codes as well as established policies and procedures. The Directors will regularly assess and
document whether the Board's approach to corporate governance achieves its objectives and, consequently,
whether the Board itself is fulfilling its own responsibilities. The Board will review through its board evaluation the
effectiveness of its overall approach to governance and make changes where that effectiveness needs to be
enhanced.

The Board meets at least four times a year. Between these formal meetings there is regular contact with the
Investment Manager and the Secretary. The Directors are kept fully informed of investment and financial controls
and other matters that are relevant to the business of the Company and which should be brought to the attention
of the Directors. The Directors also have access to the Administrator and, where necessary in the furtherance of
their duties, to independent professional advice at the expense of the Company. The Board is responsible for the
appointment and monitoring of all service providers to the Company.

As an investment company, most of the Company's day to day responsibilities are delegated to third parties and
all of the Directors are non-executive. As a Guernsey incorporated company, the Company is required to comply
with the Finance Sector Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission
(‘the Code’).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Board responsibilities and corporate governance (continued)

The Directors have taken the action that they consider appropriate to ensure that the appropriate level of corporate
governance, for an investment company incorporated in Guemnsey whose securities are listed on The International
Stock Exchange, is attained and maintained. The Company does not, nor intends to, adopt the UK Code of
Corporate Governance. The Company follows the Guernsey Financial Services Commission Code of Corporate
Governance.

For the purposes of assessing compliance with the Code, the Board considers all of the Directors as independent
of the Investment Manager.

Audit Committee: K Foy (Chairman until 17 April 2018), G Ross (Chairman from 17 April 2018)

The Audit Committee has been established with written terms of reference and comprises all of the Board
members. The Audit Committee members have recent and relevant financial experience. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are reviewed and re-assessed for their adequacy on an annual basis.

Role of the Audit Committee
A summary of the Committee’s main audit review functions is shown below:

o toreview and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk management systems on
which the Company is reliant;

e to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual financial statements of the Company by reviewing, and
challenging where necessary, the actions and judgements of the Manager, the Company Secretary and
the Administrator;

e toreview and monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s other third party service providers;

e overseeing the Company's relationship with the external auditor BDO Limited and to review their proposed
audit programme of work and their findings;

« approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;

« to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
and

» to monitor and review annually the external auditor's independence, objectivity, effectiveness, resources
and qualification.

To assess the effectiveness of the external auditor, the Audit Committee reviewed:
o the external auditor's fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and variations from it;
o the Audit Committee Report from the auditor highlighting the major issues that arose during the course of
the audit; and
e feedback from the Investment Manager and Administrator evaluating the performance of the audit team.

The Audit Committee has assessed the performance of the external auditor, as described above, and is satisfied
with its effectiveness and as such no change in auditor is proposed.

Independent Auditor

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company's relationship with the external auditor, including
making recommendations to the Board on their appointment of the external auditor and their remuneration. BDO
Limited has been the Company’s external auditor since the Company's inception. The lead audit director, Mr Simon
Hodgson has been appointed for the year-end 31 December 2018 audit. The Board has noted recommendations
to put the external audit out to tender at least every ten years and during 2017 undertook a review of the audit
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Independent Auditor (continued)

services provided by our Auditor and concluded that there was currently no requirement to make any changes to
their appointment.

The Directors are of the opinion that BDO Limited remain independent and provide experience and knowledge in
the audit of the Company's accounts which the Board considers to be in the best interest of the Shareholders.

The auditor, BDO Limited, indicated its willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a resolution for its
reappointment will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The Audit
Committee advises the Board on the form and content of the Annual Report and Financial Statements, any issues
which may arise and any specific areas which require judgement.

Investment policy

The Company's investment objective is to generate above average returns for Shareholders primarily through the
capital appreciation of its investments. The Directors believe that such returns can be obtained by investing in a
selective portfolio of securities and other instruments in the precious metals, diamond and uranium sectors.

Anti-bribery and corruption

The Board acknowledges that the Company's international operations may give rise to possible claims of bribery
and corruption. In consideration of the UK Bribery Act the Board reviews the perceived risks to the Company arising
from bribery and corruption to identify aspects of the business which may be improved to mitigate such risks. The
Board has adopted a zero tolerance policy towards bribery and has reiterated its commitment to carry out business
fairly, honestly and openly.

Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (‘AIFMD’)

Our Investment Manager, CQS (UK) LLP, has been authorised by the UK Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA') as
an Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM') under the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive
(‘AIFMD'). The funds managed by the AIFM are now defined as Alternative Investment Funds (‘AlFs’) and are
subject to the relevant articles of the AIFMD. Further AIFM disclosures are shown on pages 46 and 47. The Board
has appointed INDOS Financial Limited as the Company's Depositary.

Internal control and financial reporting

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining the Company's system of internal controls. Internal
control systems are designed to meet the specific needs of the Company and the risks to which it is exposed, and,
by their very nature, provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key procedures which have been established to provide effective internal controls include:
e Maitland Administration (Guemsey) Limited is responsible for the provision of administration and company
secretarial duties;
e The duties of investment management, accounting and the custody of assets are segregated. The
procedures are designed to complement one another,
o The Board clearly defines the duties and responsibilities of the Company's agents and advisers in the
terms of their contracts;
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Directors’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Internal control and financial reporting (continued)

¢ The Board receives assurances from the Company's agents and advisers that any amendments required
as a result of regulatory change, including the General Data Protection Regulations (effective 25 May
2018), are actioned accurately and timeously;

e The Board reviews financial information and compliance reports produced by the Administrator on a
regular basis and;

¢ The Custodian holds all assets of the Company, in the name of the Company.

The Board and Audit Committee have reviewed the Company's risk management and internal control systems and
believe that the controls are satisfactory, given the size and nature of the Company.

Environment

The Company seeks to conduct its affairs responsibly and environmental factors are, where appropriate, taken
into consideration with regard to investment decisions taken on behalf of the Company. The Investment Manager
considers socially responsible investment and actively engages with investee companies.

The Directors recognise that their first duty is to act in the best financial interests of the Company's shareholders
and to achieve good financial returns against acceptable levels of risk, in accordance with the objectives of the
Company.

In asking the Company's [nvestment Manager to deliver against these objectives, the Directors have also
requested that the Investment Manager take into account the broader social, ethical and environmental issues of
companies within the Company's portfolio, acknowledging that companies failing to manage these issues
adequately run a long term risk to the sustainability of their businesses. More specifically, they expect companies
to demonstrate ethical conduct, effective management of their stakeholders' relationships, responsible
management and mitigation of social and environmental impacts, as well as due regard for wider societal issues.

Going concern _
The Directors believe that it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial
Statements since:

o the assets of the Company consist mainly of securities which are readily realisable and;

o the Company has an agreed overdraft facility provided by its Custodian for which margin requirements
are monitored and reported on a monthly basis. There were no breaches of these requirements during
the year or prior year.

Accordingly, the Company has adequate financial resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.

Shareholders’ significant interests
The following shareholders had a substantial interest of 5% or more of the Company's issued share capital as at
31 December 2018, and as at the date of the signing of these Financial Statements:

% of issued share capital

Clients of The Bank of New York (Nominees) Limited 10.47%
Clients of Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) Limited : 6.50%
Clients of HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) Limited 5.67%
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Material contracts

The Company's material contracts are with CQS Cayman Limited Partnership, (the Company has appointed CQS
as its investment manager, however, CQS has, with the agreement of the Board, delegated that function to New
City Investment Managers (a trading name of CQS (UK) LLP)), to provide investment management services,
Maitland Administration (Guernsey) Limited, which acts as Secretary and Administrator for the Company, Credit
Suisse AG Dublin Branch, which acts as Custodian, INDOS Financial Limited, which acts as Depositary and
Computershare Investor Services (Guemsey) Limited, which acts as Registrar for the Company.

Details of the fees payable under these contracts are as detailed in note 5 to the Financial Statements.

Relations with Shareholders

The Directors place a great deal of importance on communication with shareholders. The Annual Report and
Financial Statements are also distributed to other parties who have an interest in the Company's performance.
Additional information on the Company can be obtained through the Investment Manager's website
www.ncim.co.uk.

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements is sent out
at least 20 working days in advance of the meeting. All shareholders have the opportunity to put questions to the
Board or the Investment Manager formally at the Company's Annual General Meeting.

The Company Secretary and Investment Manager are available to answer general shareholder queries at any time
throughout the year.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Directors confirm that, so far as each of the Directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which
the Company’s auditor is unaware, having taken all the steps the Directors ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 17 April 2019 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

ol

Robert King Toby Birch
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Investment Manager’s Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Gold closed the year at $1,282 an ounce, a slight decline of around 1.5%. US-China trade negotiations and FED
interest rate policy had a significant influence on the US dollar and gold prices while Brexit has also been a factor
for UK investors.

Gold started the year on a firm footing with Trump’s move to implement tariffs on steel and aluminium imports in
March escalating unnerving markets and supporting gold. However, as markets continued to discount a US-led
rate tightening cycle through 2019 progressive US dollar strength subsequently weighed on the sector with prices
declining to below US$1,200/0z in Q3. FED commentary later in the year, which initially hinted that rate hikes would
continue into 2019, subsequently reversed. Against a backdrop of waning impetus from Trump's post-election
economic stimulus the FED indicated that rates may be approaching a neutral level sooner than expected. This
volte face in the Federal Reserve’s position supported gold prices and markets more broadly. Combined with an
extended US government shutdown towards the end of the year which also raised investor risk aversion, gold
prices rose 7% during the final quarter of 2018, helping to recoup declines during the middle of the year and at the
time of writing gold has recovered to around US$1,300/oz.

The fourth quarter of 2018 was a painful one for Golden Prospect on an actual and relative basis, with the fund
declining 16.1% over the quarter. The fund showed underperformance due to its preferential exposure to value
names that were typically of smaller capitalisation. The funds preference is to avoid investing in relatively expensive
momentum stocks. Importantly tax loss selling in the latter stages of 2018 had a material impact on equities,
accentuating the divergence in performance of less liquid but attractively valued stocks. Year-to-date we have seen
amore positive recovery in a number of the Fund's conviction positions such as West African Resources, Westgold
and Doray Minerals, which has seen the NAV return to the level prior to the 4Q sell off.

The Fund's relative underperformance versus the GDXJ has primarily been a result of the outperformance of the
larger producers, notably in Australia, which have seen their valuations using spot gold prices move from over 2x
PINAV to over 3x P/NAV. Whilst momentum investment has clearly been the preferable strategy over this period,
we do not believe this is sustainable. As stated, more recently we have begun to see a rotation from these high
multiple Australian producers into more value oriented names, such as Doray Minerals whose market cap has
increased following its merger with Silver Lake. Westgold Resources too has started to re-rate given free cash flow
is rising as a programme of capital expenditure rolls off.

We believe the influence of algorithmic and quant driven trading, which has played a part in the momentum
investment style, has latterly helped the combined Doray/Silver Lake entity to rerate purely as a result of the group's
increased market capitalisation. Whilst this may appear irrational based purely on a valuation justification, it
illustrates that the enlarged company has moved into the size range of the marginal buying from such strategies.
This improvement in performance has the potential to become self-fulfilling as attention is also drawn to their strong
free cash flow yields. We continue to focus on names that offer FCF tomorrow rather than today, due to their
significantly discounted valuations, which we believe offers greater upside potential to rerate and also improved
downside protection otherwise. We believe this can be seen across the majority of the top 10 Fund positionis. We
believe the more recent moves seen in the Fund's conviction positions reflects a rotation back into these stacks
which have been left behind and a normalisation of the relative valuations between small and larger cap.

Since the year-end there has been a clear shift in expectations by futures markets on the outlook for US rates and
the overwhelming certainty of continued rate increases has moved to a near 50% implied probability of rate cuts.
Similarly FED minutes have also shown this has been a prime driver of renewed interest in gold year-to-date whose
price has risen to around US$1,310/0z at the time of writing.

Foliowing the end-January decision to hold rates, FED minutes reiterated the “patient’ approach adopted by the
committee recently to assess monetary policy. Perhaps more surprisingly, the FED also raised concerns over its
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Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

lack of sensitivity around equity market volatility which may have been affected by the ongoing programme of
quantitative tightening. With around US$50bn of FED owned bonds maturing each month, the programme reduced
market liquidity at the same time as many institutions have revised down global growth forecasts. The removal of
liquidity was considered a factor which contributed to poor equity market performance during Q4 2018. In context,
with the FED’s previously flagged view that current 2.25-2.500p interest rates may already be close to a neutral
level, this latter statement provides a further reason to think that the current monetary tightening cycle may have
peaked.

Physical gold demand was relatively robust over the year with mid-year softness in ETF demand offset by an
increase in net central bank buying. Central bank buying remains an important feature of the market, with many
non-US institutions increasingly seeking to diversify reserves. Indeed gold remains a very sensible form of
insurance given the US debt/GDP ratio now above 100%. At these levels the rising interest burden on government
borrowings may outgrow the U.S. economy's ability to credibly service it. Assuming Trump is able to reinvigorate
momentum into the US economy ahead of the 2020 Presidential elections and there is no recession, US debt is
still forecast to grow and the compounding interest cost burden is an increasing drag on productive capital
allocation and more sustainable productivity led growth.

Commentary around the mega mergers of Barrick/Randgold and Newmont/Goldcorp has clearly stated that non-
core assets will be sold. The Australian producers were cited as the likely acquirers, which from prior market
experience suggests a risk of equity de-rating if corporate strategy shifts away from shareholder returns. The
capital return policy of a number of Australian producers has taken place at the expense of reserves replacement
incrementally raising the prospect of increasing future production costs without M&A. This represents something
of a Catch 22 and as a result we believe they are exposed to a material relative de-rating. Non-core divestures
from the mega mergers may reduce the appetite for M&A in other names, though we highlight the Fund is broadly
positioned in those projects that are not reliant on M&A and preferably have a self-manageable and fully funded
route to FCF.

It is also important to consider the logic for these mega mergers, which appear to be less to do with true valuation
creation and more to do with the respective multiple uplifts they may achieve through scale. Whilst there is potential
to reduce duplicated overheads the quantum of cost reduction is relatively marginal. The Fund is positioned to
benefit from the greater potential multiple expansion offered by merger at the other end of the market cap spectrum.
Mergers are a major theme amongst the ‘forgotten’ smaller producers we meet, where a clear consensus is forming
for logical M&A. As is occurring with Doray and Silver Lake they can experience re-ratings through scale, liquidity
and reduced balance sheet risk from shifting to a multi mine producer, with other examples being Americas Silver
and Westgold. For the large combined entities of the new Barrick and Newmont the issue of struggling to replace
their reserves with those of a comparable quality and margin will be exacerbated, as there are simply not enough
discoveries for them to replace the reserves they exhaust, hence why Goldcorp highlights a decline in production
as the group has passed peak gold production.

With these prior thoughts in consideration we are using the relative strength in some of the Australian names to
rotate in to the lagging Canadian names, e.g. West African Resources in to Americas Silver. Our preference is for
names rich in catalysts to ensure value can be appreciated, to avoid value traps, with a fully funded route to FCF
the most preferable metric.

New City Investment Managers (a trading name of CQS (UK) LLP)
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited (continued)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited (the “Company”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by
the European Union.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its loss for the
year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the I1SAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

o the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

« the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited (continued)

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Investments (note 7) The investment portfolio at 31 | We agreed the existence of the investment portfolio
December 2018 comprised listed investments and | holdings to the Custodian confirmation.

warrants whose price is readily available, along with
unlisted warrants. Unlisted warrants are valued using | We tested the valuation of all listed investments held
valuation models. by agreeing the prices used in the valuation to
independent third party sources.

We focused on the valuation and existence of
investments because investments represent the | For the unlisted warrants we utilised the audit team's
principal element of the net asset value as disclosed | valuation experts to value these instruments and then
in the Statement of Financial Position in the financial | compared this with the valuations prepared by
statements. management.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements. We consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could
influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial, as we also take
account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when
evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole to be
£359,000 (2017: £488,000), which is based on a level of 1.75% of total assets. We considered total assets to be
the most appropriate benchmark due to the Company being an investment fund with the objective of long term
capital growth.

Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the individual account or balance level set at an amount
to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Performance materiality for the
Company has been set at £251,300 which is 70% of materiality (2017: £341,000). This has been set based upon
the control environment in place, the directors' assessment of risk and our past experience of adjustments.

International Standards on Auditing (UK) also allow the auditor to set a lower materiality for particular classes of
transaction, balances or disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial
statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements. In this context, we set a lower leve! of materiality to apply to investment income
and sensitive fees including: investment management fees, administration fees, directors’ fees, legal and
professional fees, audit fees, financial advisers' fees, depository fees, registrar's fees and custodian fees. We
determined materiality for these areas to be £35,900.

We agreed with the audit committee that we would report to the committee all individual audit differences identified
during the course of our audit in excess of £14,360. We also agreed to report differences below these thresholds
that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

There were no misstatements identified during the course of our audit that were ihdividually, or in aggregate,
considered to be material in terms of their absolute monetary value or on qualitative grounds.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited (continued)

An overview of the scope of our audit

We carried out a full scope audit of the Company which was tailored to take into account the nature of the
Company's investments, involvement of the Investment Manager, the Company's Administrator and Custodian,
the accounting and reporting environment and the industry in which the Company operates.

In designing our overall audit approach, we determined materiality and assessed the risk of material misstatement
in the financial statements.

This assessment took into account the likelihood, nature and potential magnitude of any misstatement. As part of
this risk assessment we considered the Company's interaction with the Investment Manager and the Company's
Administrator and Custodian. We assessed the control environment in place at the Investment Manager and the
Company's Administrator to the extent that it was relevant to our audit. Following this assessment, we applied
professional judgement to determine the extent of testing required over each balance in the financial statements.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we have failed to obtain all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
are necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement within the Directors’ Report, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 262 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BDO Limited
Chartered Accountants
Place du Pré

Rue du Pré

St Peter Port
Guernsey

Date: 17th April 2019

17 Annual Report and Accounts




Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Revenue Capital Total Total
Notes £ £ £ £
Income
Income from investments held at fair
value through profit or loss 7 7,969 - 7,969 87,530
Net capital losses on investments
held at fair value through profit or
loss 7 - (8,030,145) (8,030,145) (1,924,424)
Net gains on foreign exchange 130,884 130,884 -
Net income 138,853 {8,030,145) (7,891,292) (1,836,894)
Expenses
Investment management fees 5 (236,377) (236,377) (306,142)
Exchange loss - - - (99,913)
Administration fees 5 (65,000) - (65,000) (65,000)
Directors’ fees 5 (64,000) - (64,000) (60,000)
Legal and professional fees (2,809) - (2,809) (23,219)
Audit fees (26,000) - (26,000) (22,245)
Other expenses (15,678) - (15,678) (19,331)
Research fees 5 (22,418) - (22,418) -
Financial advisers fees 5 (17,500) - (17,500) (17,500)
Sponsor fees (16,738) - (16,738) (17,282)
Depositary fees 5 (16,888) (16,888) (16,800)
Registrar’s fees 5 (16,391) - (16,391) (14,905)
Custodian fees 5 {9,936) - (9,936) (14,294)
Total operating expenses (509,735) (509,735) {676,631)
Net loss on ordinary activities ‘
hefore finance costs and taxation (370,882) (8,030,145) {8,401,027) (2,513,525)
Finance cost
Finance income 43,854 - 43,854 16,201
Overdraft interest 8 (134,734) - (134,734) (112,532)
Net loss on ordinary activities before
taxation {461,762) {8,030,145) (8,491,907) {2,609,856)
Taxation (599) - (599) (13,458)
Total comprehensive loss for
the year (462,361) (8,030,145) (8,492,506) (2,623,314)
Basic and diluted loss per
Ordinary share {pence) 6 {14.90p) {4.60p)

The "Total’ column of this statement represents the Company’s Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union. The supplementary revenue
and capital columns are both prepared for information purposes only. No operations were acquired or disposed of during the
year. All income is attributable to the equity holders of the Company

All the items in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 22 to 40 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2018

, 2018 2017
Notes £ £
Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 7 15,590,778 26,324,365
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 4,970,431 1,609,584
Other receivables 9 61 8,461
Total Assets 20,561,270 27,942,410
Current Liabilities
Other payables and accruals 10 (87,133) (207,754)
Bank overdraft 8 (6,458,013) (5,230,993)
Total Liabilities (6,545,146) (5,438,747)
Net Assets 14,016,124 22,503,663
Equity
Share capital 1 57,014 57,002
Revenue reserve 12 (5,744,249) (5,281,888)
Distributable reserve 12 43,907,914 43,902,959
Realised capital reserves 12 (15,114,884) (14,463,837)
Unrealised capital reserves 12 (9,089,671) (1,710,573)
Total Equity 14,016,124 22,503,663
Number of Ordinary Shares in issue 1 57,014,331 57,002,026
Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share (pence) 16 24.58 39.48

The Financial Statements on pages 18 to 40 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue
and signed on 17 April 2019 on its behalf by:

NG L

Robert King Toby Birch

The notes on pages 22 to 40 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Note

Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss on ordinary activities for the year

Adjustments for;

Net capital losses on investments held at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease in receivables

Decrease in payables and accruals

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from subscription share conversion

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 8

Supplementary cash flow information
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities include:

Interest received on cash balances
Interest paid on cash balances
Income received from investments

2018 2017
£ £
(8492,508)  (2,623,314)
8,030,145 1,924 424
8,400 8,141
(120,621) (1,201)
(3,780,044)  (10,778,884)
6,483,486 11,882,624
2,128,860 411,790
4,967 -
4,967 -
2,133,827 411,790
(3621,409)  (4,033,199)
(1,487,582)  (3,621,409)
£ £
45,316 15,015
(129,841) (113,571)
7,969 98,528

The notes on pages 22 to 40 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1.

22

COMPANY INFORMATION

Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated in Guernsey on 16 October 2006
as an authorised closed-ended investment scheme under the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey)
Law 1987, as amended. The Company's registered office is shown on page 44.

The Company’s Ordinary Shares are traded on London Stock Exchange SETS QX with code GPM.

The Company's Ordinary Shares were admitted to the Official List of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange
(‘CISX) on 24 June 2008. The Channel Islands Securities Exchange rebranded to The International Stock
Exchange (“TISE") on 6 March 2017.

During the year, 12,305 Subscription Shares were converted to Ordinary Shares. For further details see note
1.

The Company’s investment objective is to generate above average returns for Shareholders primarily through
the capital appreciation of its investments. The Directors believe that such returns can be obtained by investing
in a selective portfolio of securities and other instruments in the precious metals, diamond and uranium
sectors.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
to be material in relation to the Company's Financial Statements:

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS') as endorsed by the European Union which comprise standards and interpretations as issued and
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB'), and International Financial Reporting
Standard Interpretations (‘IFRIC's') that remain in effect, and to the extent that they have been adopted by the
European Union, and reflect the following policies, which have been adopted and applied consistently.

ltems included in the Company’s Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (‘the functional currency’). The currency in which the Company's
shares are denominated, and in which its operating expenses are incurred, is Sterling. The Company's
investments are denominated in many different currencies. Accordingly, the Directors regard Sterling as the
functional currency. The Company has also adopted Sterling as its presentational currency.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement of certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The most significant accounting judgements made by management are deemed to be the fair value estimation
of non-listed investments described below.

The valuation techniques used by the Company include inputs that are not based on the observable market
data to estimate the fair value of its unlisted investments. Significant judgement has been applied by the
Directors when valuing these investments.

The Directors believe that the applied valuation techniques and assumptions used are appropriate in
determining the fair value of unlisted investments. Further details are provided in note 7.

Adoption of new and revised standards

The accounting policies adopted in the year are consistent with those of the previous financial period, with the
exception of new standards that have become effective during the year. Although there were a number of new
standards and interpretations, notably IFRS 9, that apply for the first time in 2018, none of these had any
significant impact on the Company's Financial Statements. The Company has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective and the Company doesn't
expect these to have any material impact.

Standards and interpretations in issue

At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statements, the following standards and interpretations have
become relevant to the Company and have therefore been applied in these Financial Statements:

- IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement' as set by thé IASB.
- IFRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures — Amendments regarding initial application of IFRS 9* -
effective for when [FRS 9 is applied.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement.

The Directors have considered the impact of IFRS 9. It includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments based on the Company's business model. All of the existing
investments were already fair valued, using either listed prices or Black Scholes models, in accordance with
IAS 39 and the Company does not issue any debt. On this basis there was no impact on the carrying values
of such financial assets in the financial statements with the adoption of IFRS 9. Under IAS 39 receivables,
trades and cash and cash equivalents were classified as loans and receivables, these items under IFRS 9
are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Comprehensive Income when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
the Company intends to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and liability simultaneously.

Financial assets
The Company's financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value or through profit or loss; and
o those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flow. At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They principally comprise of other receivables and cash balances held with financial
institutions. These are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
provisions for impairment. The effect of discounting is immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise current accounts, bank overdrafts and demand deposits and other short-
term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows.

Financial assets at fair value

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the Company's documented
investment strategy. The Company's policy is for the Investment Manager and the Board of Directors to
evaluate the information about these financial assets on a fair value basis together with other related financial
information.

Recognition
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the investment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets at fair value (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset (in whole or in part) is derecognised either (i) when the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership; or (i) when it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards and when it no longer has control over the assets or a portion of the asset; or (iii) when the
contractual right to receive cash flow has expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as appropriate.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the Statement
of Financial Position date. The quoted market price used for the financial assets held by the Company is the
bid price at the close of the respective market at the Statement of Financial Position date. Warrants are carried
at fair value using standard Black Scholes valuation models. Further details are disclosed in note 7. Unlisted
investments are carried at such fair value as the Directors consider appropriate given the performance of each
investee company and after considering the financial position of the entity, latest news and developments.

Fair value measurement hierarchy

IFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level
3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset or financial liability is categorised is

determined on the basis of the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their entirety into one of the three levels.

For financial instruments that are recognised at fair value on a recurring basis, the Board determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial liabilities

The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial
liability was issued and its characteristics. All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. The
Company's financial liabilities only consist of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost,

Financial liabiliies measured at amortised cost

These include payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Bank borrowings are
initially recognised at fair value net of attributable transactions costs incurred. Such interest bearing liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method-

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (in whole or in part) is derecognised when the Company has extinguished its contractual
obligations, it expires or is cancelled. Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the Statement of
Comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest income and expense
Interest income and interest expense are recognised within the Statement of Comprehensive Income using
the effective interest rate method.

Income

All other income is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Expenses in relation to share issues are treated as a component of equity within the Distributable
Reserve.

Capital reserves

Gains and losses recorded on the realisation of investments are accounted for in the Realised Capital Reserve.
Unrealised gains and losses recorded on the revaluation of investments held at the year-end and unrealised
exchange differences on investments are accounted for in the Unrealised Capital Reserve.

Revenue reserves
All income and expenses are accounted for in the Revenue Reserve.

Translation of foreign currency

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded using the exchange rate prevailing
at the transaction date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and those from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company.

For management purposes, the Company is organised into one main operating segment, which invests in
precious metals securities which are principally listed on the stock exchanges of London, New York, Toronto
and Sydney. All of the Company’s activities are interrelated, and each activity is based upon analysis of the
Company as one segment.

On a day to day basis investment decisions have been delegated to the Investment Manager, New City
Investment Managers.

The Company does not hold any non-current assets which require disclosure under IFRS 8. The Company
also does not have any external customers and therefore the disclosure of customers geographically required
under IFRS 8 is not applicable. However, for additional information, the fair value of each geographical base
and the respective percentages of the total value of the Company can be found in the Portfolio Statement
beginning on page 41.
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TAXATION

The Company has been granted exemption from Guernsey taxation and has paid an annual exemption fee
for the year of £1,200 (2017: £1,200). It should be noted, however, that interest and dividend income accruing
from the Company’s investments may be subject to irrecoverable withholding tax in the country of origin.

The Company has suffered withholding tax in the year under review of £599 (31 December 2017: £14,916).

DISTRIBUTION TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors do not expect income (net of expenses) to be significant and do not currently expect to declare
any cash dividends. In the event that net income is significant, the Directors may consider the distribution of
net income in the form of cash dividends. To the extent that any cash dividends are paid, they will be paid in
accordance with any applicable laws and the regulations of the TISE.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Directors’ Fees )

The Directors are responsible for the determination of the investment policy of the Company and have overall
responsibility for the Company's activities. From 1 January 2018 Directors are entitled to total remuneration
for their services of £64,000 per annum. During the year Directors’ fees of £64,000 were charged to the
Company (2017: £60,000) and £nil was payable at the year-end (31 December 2017: £12,000). All Directors
are non-executive.

Other significant agreements

Investment Manager

The Investment Manager, New City Investment Managers (a trading name of CQS (UK) LLP, previously CQS
Asset Management Limited) is entitled to an annual management fee, payable monthly in arrears, of 1.25%
of the Company’s Net Asset Value. The Investment Manager is also entitled to reimbursement of certain
expenses incurred by it in connection with its duties. During the year investment management fees of £236,377
were charged to the Company (2017: £306,142) and £29,327 was payable at the year-end (2017: £45,996).

The Investment Manager has also received £22,418 (2017: nil) in relation to the reimbursement of third party
research fees incurred on behalf of the Company in this financial accounting period.

The Investment Manager is also entitled to receive an annual performance fee equal to 20% of the increase
in the Company’s Net Asset Value on the last Trading Day of each calendar period, above an annual hurdle
for growth of 8% and subject to a high water mark. During the year no performance fees had accrued to the
Investment Manager (2017: £nil).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS (continued)

Administrator

The Company’s Administrator is Maitland Administration (Guernsey) Limited. In consideration for the services
provided by the Administrator under the Administration Agreement, the Administrator is entitled to receive from
the Company an annual fee of £65,000 per annum payable quarterly in arrears. During the year administration
fees of £65,000 were charged to the Company (2017: £65,000) and £16,250 was payable at the year-end
(2017: £16,250).

Custodian Fees

The Company's Custodian is Credit Suisse AG Dublin Branch. Custodian fees are charged monthly at 5 basis
points based on the Company's assets under management. During the year custodian fees of £9,936 were
charged to the Company (2017: £14,294) and £866 was payable at the year-end (2017: £1 ,037).

Depositary Fees

The Company's Depositary is INDOS Financial Limited. In consideration for the services provided by the
Depositary under the Depositary Agreement, the Depositary is entitled to receive from the Company an annual
fee of 0.02% of the Company's Net Asset Value up to £150 million; 0.015% up to £300 million; 0.0125% up to
£450 million and 0.015% thereafter, subject to a minimum fee of £1,400 per month. During the year depositary
fees of £16,888 were charged to the Company (2017: £16,800) and £1,400 was payable at the year-end
(2017: £5,512).

Financial Adviser and Corporate Broker

The Company’s Financial Adviser and Corporate Broker (‘Financial Adviser') is Cantor Fitzgerald. Under the
agreement, the Financial Adviser is entitled to receive from the Company an annual fee of £17,500 per annum
payable quarterly in advance. During the year financial adviser fees of £17,500 (2017. £17,500) were charged
to the Company and £nil (2017: £nil) was payable at the year end.

Registrar Fees

The Company's Registrar is Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited. In consideration for the
services provided by the Registrar under the Registrars Agreement, the Registrar is entitled to receive from
the Company an annual fee of £8,100 per annum payable monthly in arrears as well as all reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses. During the year registrar fees of £16,391 were charged to the Company (2017: £14,905)
and £849 was payable at year end (2017: £1,878).

BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Basic loss per Ordinary Share is calculated by dividing the comprehensive loss for the year of £8,492,506
(2017: loss £2,623,314) by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for the year is 57,003,105 (2017 57,002,026). The 28,488,690
Subscription Shares are non-dilutive as at 31 December 2018 as the average share price for the period was
below the exercise price together with the Company making a loss. Assuming all Subscription Shares are
exercised at the first possible opportunity, being the last business day in November 2018, and given no further
changes in share capital of the Company, the (loss)/earnings per Ordinary Share is expected to be diluted by
4%.
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INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted by the Company, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in
respect of its financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 2. The following table analyses the fair value
of the Company's financial assets and liabilities by category as defined in IFRS 13.

Opening fair value at 1 January
2018

Purchases
Sales
Transfers

Gain/(loss)
- realised

- unrealised
Closing fair value at 31 December
2018

Split by:
Listed equities
Warrants

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£ £ £ £
25,615,546 708,819 - 26,324,365
3,721,023 59,021 - 3,780,044
(6,483,486) - - (6,483,486)
(651,047) - - (651,047)
(6,806,558) (672,540) - (7,379,098)
15,395,478 195,300 15,590,778
15,395,478 - - 15,395,478
- 195,300 - 195,300
15,395,478 195,300 15,590,778

During the year ended 31 December 2018 there were no transfers of fair value measurements between the
levels. There was one investment held at level 3 with a nil value.

Please refer to pages 41 to 43 for an analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which are

disclosed above.

Opening fair value at 1 January 2017
Purchases

Sales

Transfers

Gain/(loss)
- realised
- unrealised

Closing fair value at 31 December
2017

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£ £ £ £
28,211,439 1,141,090 - 29,352,529
10,653,853 125,031 - 10,778,884
(11,005,965) (876,659) - (11,882,624)
1,930,072 108,342 - 2,038,414
(4,173,853) 211,015 - (3,962,838)
25,615,546 708,819 . 26,324,365
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The Directors believe that the use of reasonable possible alternative assumptions for its one Level 3 equity holding

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ £ £ £

Split by:
Listed equities 25,615,546 - - 25,615,546
Bonds - - - -
Warrants - 708,819 708,819
25,615,546 708,819 26,324,365

During the year ended 31 December 2017 there were no transfers of fair value measurements between the
levels. There were two investments held at Level 3 with a total value of nil.

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Realised (loss)/gain on financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised losses on financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Net capital losses on financial assets

Dividend income and interest on bonds

Total net losses on financial assets

2018 2017
£ £
(651,047) 2,038,414

(7,379,098) (3,962,838)
(8,030,145) (1,924,424)
7,969 87,530
(8,022,176) (1,836,894)

Valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values, including the key inputs used, are as follows:

Valuation techniques

Fair value
ltem hierarchy level
Financial assets at fair value through Level 1
profit or loss — Listed equity securities
Financial assets at fair value through Level 2

profit or loss — Warrants

Fair value is the quoted bid price.

The fair value of warrants has been
calculated using the underlying listed prices,
expiry dates and observable future volatility
using the Black-Scholes method.

would not result in a valuation materially different from the valuation of £nil included in these financial statements.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2018 2017

£ £

Cash at bank 4,970,431 1,609,584
Bank overdraft (6,458,013) (5,230,993)
(1,487,582) (3,621,409)

Credit Suisse AG Dublin Branch (‘CSAGDB') may determine from time to time the overdraft limit it will provide
to the Company and may provide reasonable notice in writing of such an amount.

Overdraft interest is calculated on a daily basis using the one month Libor rate plus 175 basis points and is
charged to the Company on a monthly basis. In order to satisfy CSAGDB of liquidity, a margin requirement is
calculated to establish a net equity and cash position that must be maintained as collateral. If the Company
falls into deficit then more funds are called. If the margin calls are not met then CSAGDB can call in all
outstanding funds. At no point during the year did the Company fall into deficit and at the year end the
Company held an excess over the margin requirement of £5,655,894 (2017: £11,453,570).

The overdraft interest during the year of £134,734 (2017: £112,532) represents the only gain or loss on
financial liabifities measured at amortised cost.

In addition to the above there is a provision for an event of default where the NAV changes from the previous
highest NAV of the previous calendar year by more than 50%, 40% for the previous 3 months and 20% for the
previous month. These are monitored on a monthly basis and the Directors confirm there were no breaches
in the year.

RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
£ £
General expenses prepaid 61 6,999
Bank interest receivable - 1,462
61 8,461

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximates their fair value due to their short
term nature.
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2018 2017

£ £

Subscription share issue costs (note 11) - 93,000
Investment management fee payable (note 5) 29,327 45,996
Audit fee 23,000 20,000
Administration fee payable (note 5) 16,250 16,250
Directors’ fees payable (note 5) - 12,000
Bank overdraft interest (note 8) 14,973 10,080
Depositary fee payable (note 5) 1,400 5,512
Other expenses 1,334 3,038
Registrar fee payable (note 5) 849 1,878
87,133 207,754

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of payables and accruals approximates their fair value due to their
short term nature.

11. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017

2018 No. of shares £
Ordinary Shares of £0.001 par value 200,000,000 £200,000
Subscription Shares of no par value 28,488,690 -
2017 No. of shares £
Ordinary Shares of £0.001 par value 200,000,000 £200,000
Subscription Shares of no par value 28,500,995 -
No. of Shares Share Capital
2018 2017 2018 2017
Issued and Fully Paid Share Capital £ £
Equity Shares
Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each at inception
As at 1 January 57,002,026 57,002,026 57,002 57,002
Issued during the year 12,305 - 12 -
As at 31 December 57,014,331 57,002,026 57,014 57,002

Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to one vote for each Ordinary Share held and are entitied to receive any
distributions declared by the Company. On a winding-up, the Ordinary Shareholders shall be entitled, pro rata
to their holdings, to all the assets of the Company available for distribution to Shareholders.

On 22 December 2017, the Company issued 28,500,995 Subscription Shares for nil consideration to all
registered shareholders, by way of bonus issue, on the basis of one Subscription Share for every two existing
ordinary shares held on the 20 December 2017.
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Each Subscription Share confers the right, but not the obligation, to subscribe for one Ordinary Share. During
the year 12,305 subscription shares were converted to ordinary shares at 40.37p, giving a consideration of
£4,967. The subscription rights on the remaining 28,488,690 shares may be exercised annually on the last
business day in November 2019 for 42.30p and in November 2020 for 46.14p, after which time the subscription
rights will lapse.

RESERVES

Revenue Reserve
Any surplus/ (deficit) arising from total comprehensive income is taken to this reserve, which may be utilised
for the buy-back of shares and payments of dividends.

Distributable Reserve
The Distributable Reserve can be used for all purposes permitted under Guernsey company law, including the
buy-back of shares and payment of dividends.

Realised Capital Reserve
The Realised Capital Reserve contains realised gains and losses on the disposal of investments, together
with any expenses allocated fo capital.

Unrealised Capital Reserve
The Unrealised Capital Reserve contains unrealised increases and decreases in the fair value of the
Company's investment portfolio.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks as a result of its activities. These risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk). The
Company's risk management policies, approved by the Board of Directors, seek to minimise the potential
adverse effects of these risks on the Company's financial performance.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resuiting in financial
foss to the Company.

As at the date of the Statement of Financial Position, financial assets exposed to credit risk comprise bank
balances and receivables. It is the opinion of the Board of Directors that the carrying amount of these financial
assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure as at the date of the Statement of Financial Position.

As at 31 December 2018 there were no financial assets which were past due or impaired (31 December 2017:
none).

The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company’s transactions are concluded with a suitably approved
counterparty with an appropriate credit quality, CSAGDB currently has a Standard and Poor's credit rating of
A-1/A (31 December 2017: A-1/A). The following table illustrates the credit concentration by category:
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Credit risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents:
Credit Suisse AG Dublin Branch

Receivables
Total assets with credit risk

Liquidity risk

2018 2017

£ £
4,970,431 1,609,584
61 1,462
4,970,492 1,611,046

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter in realising assets or otherwise raising funds to meet

financial commitments.

Whilst most of the Company's financial assets are listed securities which are considered readily realisable as
they are listed on major recognised stock exchanges, some of the financial assets held by the Company may
not be listed on recognised stock exchanges and so will not be readily realisable and their marketability may
be restricted. The Company might only be able to liquidate these positions at disadvantageous prices, should
the Investment Manager determine, or it become necessary, to do so. The fair value of these financial assets
as at 31 December 2018 amounts to £195,300 (2017: £708,819).

The following table details the Company's liquidity analysis for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted net cash flows on the financial liabilities that settle on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross cash flows on those financial liabilities that require gross settiement.

Less than 1 3 months 1 year 2018
month  1-3months  to1year to5years Total
£ £ £ £ £
Gross settled:

Bank overdraft 6,458,013 - - - 6,458,013
Bank overdraft interest 14,973 - - - 14,973

Investment management fee
payable 29,327 - - - 29,327
Registrar 849 - - - 849
Administration fee payable 16,250 - - - 16,250
Audit fee - - 23,000 - 23,000
Depositary fee payable 1,400 - - - 1,400
Other expenses 1,334 - - - 1,334
6,522,146 23,000 - 6,545,146
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Less than 1 1-3 3 months 1 year 2017
month months  to1year tob5 years Total
£ £ £ £ £
Gross settled:

Bank overdraft 5,230,993 - - - 5,230,993
Bank overdraft interest 10,080 - - - 10,080

Investment management fee
payable 45,996 - - - 45,996
Subscription share issue costs - - 93,000 - 93,000
Administration fee payable 16,250 - - - 16,250
Directors' fees payable 12,000 - - - 12,000
Audit fee - - 20,000 - 20,000
Depositary fee payable 5,512 - - - 5,512
Sundry creditor 4,916 - - - 4,916
5,325,747 - 113,000 - 5438747

CSAGDB as Custodian has a fixed charge on all the Company's cash and investments held by Credit Suisse
in return for services provided including execution of transactions, custody of investments and financing. As
per note 8 CSAGDB also calculates a margin requirement to establish a net cash and equity position that must
be maintained as collateral. As at the year end the Company had a significant excess over this requirement.
Should there be a deficit at any point CSAGDB s entitled to call in all outstanding funds.

The Investment Manager manages liquidity and margin on a daily basis. The Company's overall exposure to
liquidity risk is monitored by the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

Market Risk
The Company's activities expose it primarily to the market risks of changes in market prices, interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will adversely fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

The Company is exposed to market price risk arising from its financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. The performance of these financial assets will be affected by the performance of the
investee companies. The exploration, development and production of metal and mineral deposits involve
significant uncertainties and the investee companies will be subject to all the hazards and risks normally
encountered in such activities. Many of these are difficult to predict and are outside the control of the investee
companies. They include, amongst others, issues relating to the environment, the climate, the geographical
environment, local and international regulatory requirements, licensing terms, planning permission,
unexpected geological formations, rock falls, flooding, pollution, legal liabilities, the availability and reliability
of plant and equipment, the scaling-up of operations, the reliance on key individuals, local finance and tax
regimes, foreign currency repatriation, capital and budget constraints, contractors and
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Price risk {continued)

suppliers, local employment regulations and practices, employment unions and the availability of suitable
fabour.

In addition, there is often no guarantee that the estimates of quantities and grades of metals and minerals
disclosed by investee companies will be available for extraction.

The Company's financial assets are exposed to market price fluctuations which are monitored by the
Investment Manager in pursuance of the Company's investment objectives and policies. Adherence to
investment guidelines and to investment and borrowing powers set out in the Placing and Offer for Subscription
document mitigates the risk of excessive exposure to any particular type of security or issuer. However, with
respect to the investment strategy utilised by the Company there is always some, and occasionally some
significant, degree of market risk.

Price sensitivity

The value of the Company's financial assets had a sensitivity of £4,677,233 (2017: £7,897,310 ) to a 30%
(2017: 30%) increase or decrease in the market prices with other variables being held constant as at 31
December 2018. A 30% change is the sensitivity rate currently used when reporting price risk internally to key
management personnel.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Company is directly exposed to interest rate risk as it holds cash and cash equivalents which are invested
at short term rates and debt securities, when held, which receive interest at a fixed rate and on the bank
overdraft. The Investment Manager manages the Company's exposure to interest rate risk on a daily basis in
accordance with the Company's investment objectives and policies. The Company's overall exposure to
interest rate risk is monitored on a quarterly basis by the Board of Directors.

The following table analyses the Company's interest rate risk exposure. The Company's assets and liabilities
are included at fair value and categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates. There are
no assets or liabilities maturing within four to twelve months of the year end.

Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

37

1-5 Years Total
As at 31 December 2018 0-3 Months £ £
Variable rate assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,970,431 - 4,970,431
Total interest bearing assets 4,970,431 - 4,970,431
Variable rate liabilities
Bank overdraft (6,458,013) - (6,458,013)
Total interest bearing liabilities (6,458,013) - (6,458,013)
0-3 Months 1-5 Years Total
As at 31 December 2017 £ £ £
Variable rate assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,609,584 - 1,609,584
Total interest bearing assets 1,609,584 - 1,609,584
Variable rate liabilities
“Bank overdraft (5,230,993) - (5,230,993)
Total interest bearing liabilities (5,230,993) - (5,230,993)

All other assets and liabilities of the Company are non-interest bearing.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the Company's exposure to interest rates for interest
bearing assets and liabilities at the date of the Statement of Financial Position and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial period and held constant throughout the reporting period in the case of
instruments that have floating rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher or lower and all other variables had been held constant, the
Company's net assets attributable to holders of Ordinary Shares at the year-end would have been £10,967
(2017: £8,253) lower or higher due to the change in the interest payable on the bank overdraft and the interest
receivable on cash and cash equivalents.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The presentation currency of the Company is Sterling. The
majority of the Company's financial assets are currently denominated in various currencies other than Sterling
and the Company may hold other financial instruments, the price of which may be determined with reference
to currencies other than Sterling.

To the extent that these financial instruments are unhedged, or are not adequately hedged, the value of the
Company's financial instruments may fluctuate with exchange rates as well as with price changes in various
local markets and currencies. The value of the financial assets may therefore be affected unfavourably by
fluctuations in currency rates and exchange control regulations. The Investment Manager has the power to
manage exposure to currency movements by using hedging instruments.

There were no hedging instruments held at the year-end or used in the year (2017: None).

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabiliies
at the date of the Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

2018 2017
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£ £ £ £
Australian Dollar (AUD) 6,041,959 - 8,520,437 -
Canadian Dollar (CAD) 9,868,570 - 15,285,299 (65,590)
United Stated Dollar (USD) 4,195,929 - 4,124,953 -
Swiss Franc (CHF) 228 - 218 -
Mexican Peso (MXN) 229,084 (280,570) 4,504 -
20,335,770 (280,570) 27,935,411 (65,590)

Foreign currency sensitivity
The Company is mainly exposed to AUD, CAD USD and MXN.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 10% (2017: 10%) increase or decrease in Sterling
against the relevant foreign currencies. A 10% change is the sensitivity rate currently used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel. A positive number indicates an increase in net
assets attributable to holders of Ordinary Shares where Sterling weakens against the relevant currency and a
negative number indicates a decrease in net assets where Sterling strengthens against the relevant currency.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity (continued)

AUD CAD usD MXN
31 December 2018 £ £ £ £
Change in net assets in response to a 671,329 1,096,508 466,214 (5,721)
10% change in foreign currency rates  (549,269) (897,143) (381,448) 4,681
31 December 2017
Change in net assets in response to a 946,715 1,691,679 458,328 500
10% change in foreign currency rates  (774,585) (1,383,610) (347,996) (409)

Summary of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities by Category
The carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities, as recognised at the balance
sheet date of the reporting periods under review, are categorised as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15,590,778 26,324,365
Current assets at amortised cost
Other receivables 61 8,461
Cash and cash equivalents 4,970,431 1,609,584
20,561,270 27,942,410
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortized cost
Other payables and accruals 87,133 207,754
Bank overdraft 6,458,013 5,230,993
6,545,146 5,438,747

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains shareholder value
and that it is able to continue as a going concern. The Company manages its capital structure and, where
necessary, makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. The Company's overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt, as disclosed in note 8 and equity as per note 11.

The Company is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company expects to meet
its other obligations for operating cash flows at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Annual Report and Accounts




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

14, EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL REPORTING DATE

As at 8 February 2019, Cantor Fitzgerald resigned as financial adviser and broker to the Company and on
the same day finnCap Limited were appointed as financial adviser and broker to the Company.

15. CONTROLLING PARTY

The issued Ordinary Shares of the Company are owned by numerous parties and therefore, in the opinion of
the Directors, there is no immediate or ultimate controlling party of the Company.

16. NAV RECONCILIATION

2018 2017

£ £

Net Asset Value per financial statements 14,016,124 22,503,663
Number of Ordinary Shares in issue at the year-end 57,014,331 57,002,026
IFRS NAV per Ordinary Share 24.58p 39.48p
Issued NAV per Ordinary Share 24.87p 40.03p

The major difference between the IFRS NAV per Ordinary Share and the Issued NAV per Ordinary Share
relates to the pricing of the Investment Portfolio which is valued at a bid price for accounting purposes under
IFRS and mid-price for the Issued NAV purposes.
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Unaudited Portfolio Statement
As at 31 December 2018

Description

Equities
Australia

West African Resources
Doray Minerals
Westgold Resources
Cardinal Resources
Metals X
Independence Group
Ausgold

Amani Gold

Oklo Resources

S2 Resources
Lachlan Star Lid

Canada
Roxgold
Americas Silver
Asanko Gold
Pure Gold Mining
Continental Gold
Guyana Goldfields
Tahoe Resources
Ascendant Resources
Wheaton Precious Metals
Fortuna Silver Mines
Integra Resources
Silvercrest Metals
Atlantic Gold
Sabina Gold & Silver
Liberty Gold
Bluestone Resources
Trevali Mining
Pretium Resources
Columbus Gold
Lydian International
Santacruz Silver Mining
41

Holding

12,875,057
5,333,403
2,151,810
2,807,991

953,970
96,595
3,036,038
17,263,141
250,000
430,987
120,000

1,797,359
575,799
1,404,583
1,662,000
450,000
571,042
168,700
1,978,835
30,000
145,795
788,333
132,000
295,000
388,435
1,251,000
275,000
653,864
14,000
717,000
589,000
1,693,102

Fair
Value % of Total
£ Net Assets
1,743,623 12.44
1,061,315 7.57
1,046,704 7147
667,424 4,76
224,110 1.60
203,965 1.46
40,277 0.29
38,170 0.27
34,548 0.25
21,203 0.15
398 -
5,081,737 36.26
836,942 5.97
728,231 5.20
702,493 501
611,486 4.36
569,129 4.06
525,247 3.75
479,091 342
460,723 3.29
457,890 3.27
419,072 2.99
376,152 2.68
301,259 2.15
278,126 1.98
272,429 1.94
215,752 1.54
181,806 1.30
152,236 1.09
91,911 0.66
82,437 0.59
54,176 0.39
53,533 0.38
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Unaudited Portfolio Statement (continued)
As at 31 December 2018

Fair
Value % of Total
Description Holding £ Net Assets
Equities - continued
Canada - continued
Mandalay Resources 983,960 42,424 0.30
Allegiant Gold 73,400 12,237 0.09
7,904,781 56.41
Mexico
Industrias Penoles 24,000 229,084 1.63
229,084 1.63
United Kingdom
Keras Resources 37,500,000 120,000 0.86
Hummingbird Resources 500,000 105,500 0.75
Sovereign Bauxite of Guinea® 100,000 - -
225,500 1.61
United States
Pretium Resources 138,900 921,565 6.57
First Majestic Silver 89,140 411,545 2.94
MAG Silver 35,000 200,612 1.43
Platinum Group Metals 157,145 182,612 1.30
Tahoe Resources 50,000 142,902 1.02
Agnico Eagle Mines 3,000 95,140 0.68
1,954,376 13.94
Total Equities 15,395,478 109.85
Warrants
American Silver 10/02/2019 *2 250,000 143,719 1.03
Ascendant Resources 09/03/2022 *2 514,043 23,641 0.17
Pure Gold Mining 24/05/2020 *2 200,000 12,647 0.09
Platinum Group Metals 15/11/2019 *2 999,900 11,776 0.08
Liberty Gold Equity 16/05/2019 *2 677,000 1,946 0.01
Westgold Resources 30/06/2019 *2 1,421,375 1,571 0.01
American Silver 09/06/2021 *2 1,148,279 - -
American Silver 16/06/2021 *2 364,060 - -
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Unaudited Portfolio Statement (continued)
As at 31 December 2018

Description
Warrants - continued

Santacruz Silver Mining 14/01/2019 *2

Total Warrants

Total Investments

Other current assets less payables and accruals

Bank overdraft

Total Net Assets

Equities
Australia
Canada

Mexico

United Kingdom
United States

Warrants

Total Investments
Other current assets less payables and
accruals

Bank overdraft
Total Net Assets

* Level 3 unlisted equities

*2{ evel 2 warrants

43

Fair
Value % of Total
Holding £ Net Assets
493,750 - .
195,300 1.39
15,590,778 111.24
4,883,359 34.84
(6,458,013) (46.08)
14,016,124 100.00
5,081,737 36.26
7,904,781 56.41
229,084 1.63
225,500 1.61
1,954,376 13.94
15,395,478 109.85
195,300 1.39
15,590,778 111.24
4,883,359 34.84
(6,458,013) (46.08)
14,016,124 100.00
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Management and Administration

Directors

Malcolm Burne

Toby Birch

Kaare Foy (resigned 17 April 2018)
Robert King

Graeme Ross (appointed 17 April 2018)

Details available at — www.ncim.co.uk

Secretary and Administrator

Maitland Administration {Guernsey) Limited
1 Le Truchot

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY11WD

Registered office
1 Le Truchot

St Peter Port
Guernsey
GY11WD

Investment Manager

CQS Cayman Limited Partnership
P.O. Box 242

45 Market Street

Gardenia

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

Note: the Company has appointed CQS as its investment
manager. However, CQS has, with the agreement of the Board,
delegated that function to NCIM.

New City Investment Managers

(a trading name of CQS (UK) LLP, previously CQS
Asset Management Limited)

1 Strand

London

WC2N 5HR

AIFM

CQS (UK) LLP
1 Strand
London
WC2N 5HR
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Independent Auditor to the Company
BDO Limited

P.O. Box 180

Rue du Prée

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY1 3LL

Depositary

INDOS Financial Limited
25 North Row

London

W1K 6DJ

Principal Bankers and Custodian
Credit Suisse AG Dublin Branch
Kilmore House

Park Lane, Spencer Dock

Dublin 1

Financial Adviser and Broker to the Company
Cantor Fitzgerald Europe L.P. (to 8" February 2019)
One Churchili Place

Canary Wharf

London

EH14 5RD

Financial Adviser and Broker to the Company
finCapp LtdP. (from 8 February 2019)

60 New Broad Street

London

EC2M 14J

TISE Sponsor

Ogier Corporate Finance Limited
44 Esplanade

St Helier

Jersey

JE4 QWG




Management and Administration (continued)

Registrar and CREST Agent
Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey)
Limited

clo Queensway House

Hilgrove Street

St Helier

Jersey JE1 1ES

Advocates to the Company as to Guernsey Law
Babbé

18-20 Smith Street

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY14BL

Solicitors to the Company as to English Law
Gowling WLG (UK) LLP

4 More London Riverside

London

SE1 2AU

Market Makers
Nplus 1 Singer Limited
One Bartholomew Lane
London EC2N 2AX

Winterflood Securities
25 Dowgate Hill
London EC4R 2GA

Shore Capital
Bond Street House
14 Clifford Street
London W15 4JU

KBC Peel Hunt
111 Old Broad Street
London EC2N 1PH

Cantor Fitzgerald Europe
17 Crosswall

London

EC3N 2LB
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Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited
Registered Office Address: 1 Le Truchot, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WD
Registration Number: 45676

Golden Prospects Precious Metals Limited
Report of the UK Investment Manager Relating to Matters under the Alternative Investment

Fund Managers’ Directive
For the year ended December 31, 2018

Risk management systems

The Company's Offering Memorandum sets out the risks to which the Company is exposed. The UK Investment
Manager employs risk management disciplines which monitor the Company's portfolio and to quantify and manage
the associated market and other risks. A permanent independent department has been established by the UK
Investment Manager to perform the risk management function. The risk management and performance analysis
team (“RMPA’) is led by the Chief Risk Officer and is functionally and hierarchically separate from the operating
units of the portfolic managers of the Company.

RMPA is a dedicated control function over the operating units of the Investment Manager and is not involved in the
performance activities of the Company. RMPA has designed, documented and implemented effective risk
management policies, processes and procedures in order to identify, quantify, analyse, monitor, report on and
manage all material risks relevant to the Company's investment strategy. The systems include third party vendor
applications such as Tradar, Sungard Front Arena and MSCI Risk Metrics, complemented with a number of
proprietary applications.

Material changes to information required to be made available to investors of the Company
No material changes.
Assets of the Company subject to special arrangements arising from their illiquid nature

There are no assets of the Company which are subject to special arrangements arising from their illiquid nature.
Remuneration

The AIFM has adopted a remuneration policy which meets the requirements of the Directive and has been in place
for the current financial year of the Fund. The variable remuneration period of the AIFM ended on 31 December
2018 and therefore coincides with the financial year of the Fund.

The remuneration process is overseen by the remuneration committee (comprised predominately of independent
non-executive parties). An internal working group encompassing senior management is responsible for gathering
relevant information (both quantitative and qualitative) to evaluate the performance (both short and long term) of
individuals, teams and the AIFM as a whole, against external market benchmarks and to utilise this to develop
proposals for fixed and variable remuneration for al staff. The remuneration committee receives these proposals
and the supporting information and is responsible for independently reviewing and scrutinising the proposals and
evidence provided in line with the AIFM's stated objectives and developing its final recommendations for delivery
to the governing body of the AIFM and other entities associated with the AIFM.

The variable remuneration of all staff in excess of a threshold, which includes those individuals categorised as
remuneration code staff (“code staff'), is subject to the following:

deferred payment of up to 50% of the variable remuneration for a period of 3 years,

deferred remuneration is linked to funds managed by the AIFM ,

the breaching of certain covenants may lead to forfeiture of deferred remuneration, and

a claw-back provision of deferred remuneration in certain circumstances including future performance
issues by the individuals.
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Registered Office Address: 1 Le Truchot, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WD
Registration Number: 45676

Golden Prospects Precious Metals Limited

Report of the UK Investment Manager Relating to Matters under the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers’ Directive (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2018

The Fund is subject to the Regulation (EU) 2015/2365 on Transparency of Securities Financing Transactions and
of Reuse and Amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 of the European Parliament (“SFTR"). The regulation was
issued on November 25, 2015 effective for all alternative investment funds from January 12, 2016. The disclosure
requirements accompanying this regulation are effective for annual reports published after January 13, 2017.

A Securities Financing Transaction (“SFT") is defined per Article 3(11) of the SFTR as;
« arepurchase transaction or a reverse repurchase transaction;
e asecurities or commodities lending and securities or commodities borrowing;
e abuy-sell back transaction or sell-buy back transaction;
e amargin lending transaction.

The regulation also covers transactions that are commonly referred to as total retumn swaps (‘Swaps’). As at
December 31, 2018, there were no SFT's or Swaps held by the Fund and as such there are no disclosure
requirements in respect of these securities. The Fund did however incur margin lending fees during the year and
these have been disclosed below.

Data on return and cost for each type of SFT and Swap

The following table reflects the return and cost for each type of SFT and Swap broken down between the Fund,
the Investment Manager and third parties for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Third
Manage  partie
Fund r s

Repurchase transaction -
Securities or commodities lending and securities or commodities -
Buy-sell back fransactions or sell-buy back transactions -
Margin lending transactions (113,790) - -
Total return swaps -

£ £

Total (113,790) - -

These disclosures have been prepared by the Investment Manager and reflect the Investment Managers data as
at December 31, 2018.
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Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited
Registered Office Address: 1 Le Truchot, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WD
Registration Number: 45676

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Members of Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited
(the ‘Company’) will be held at 1 Le Truchot, 3rd Floor, St. Peter Port, Guernsey on 22 May 2019 at 11:00 BST to
transact the business set out in the Resolutions below.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

48

To receive the Company’s Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

To re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor to the Company until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are laid before the Company.

To authorise the Directors of the Company to determine the remuneration of the auditor.

To re-elect Mr Graeme Ross as a Director of the Company who retires by rotation in accordance with
Article 18.3 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

To re-elect Mr Malcolm Bume as a Director of the Company who retires by rotation in accordance with
Article 18.3 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

To re-elect Mr Robert King as a Director of the Company who retires by rotation in accordance with Article
18.3 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

To re-elect Mr Toby Birch as a Director of the Company who retires by rotation in accordance with Article
18.3 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

To authorise the Company, in accordance with Article 4.8 of the Articles of Association of the Company
and The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended (the ‘Law’), to make market purchases of its
own ordinary shares of £0.001 each (‘Ordinary Shares'), such authorisation conditional upon the Ordinary
Shares of the Company continuing to be admitted to listing on the Official List of The International
Securities Exchange (‘TISE’) and, with the exception of a tender offer or partial offer being made to all
holders of Ordinary Shares on the same terms:-

8.1 the maximum number of Ordinary Shares hereby authorised to be purchased shall be up to 15% of
the Company's existing issued ordinary share capital;

8.2 the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for the Ordinary Shares to be £0.001
per Ordinary Share;

8.3 the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) payable by the Company for the Ordinary Shares to be
5% above the average of the closing middle market quotations (as derived from Bloomberg) of an
Ordinary Share for the five (5) consecutive dealing days preceding the date on which the purchase is
made; ’
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Registered Office Address: 1 Le Truchot, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WD
Registration Number: 45676

8.4 the authority (unless previously renewed or revoked) will expire at the end of the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held in 2020 or, if earlier, the date being fifteen months from the date
of this resolution;

8.5 the Company may make a contract to purchase its own Ordinary Shares under the authority hereby
conferred prior to the expiry of such authority which will or may be executed or wholly or partly
executed after the expiry of such authority, and may make a purchase of its own Ordinary Shares in
pursuance of any such contract; and

8.6 the purchase price for any Ordinary Shares may be paid by the Company out of distributable profits
or out of capital and share premium or otherwise to the fullest extent permitted by The Companies
(Financial Assistance for Acquisition of Own Shares) Ordinance, 1998.

By order of the Board

Maitland Administration (Guernsey) Limited
1 Le Truchot

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY11WD

17 April 2019
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NOTES

—

4.
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Members entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting are entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend,
speak and vote instead of him or her, provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached
to a different share or shares held by such member. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A
form of proxy accompanies this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude members
from attending or voting at the Meeting, if they so wish. The fact that members may have completed forms
of proxy will not prevent them from attending and voting at the Meeting in person should they afterwards
decide to do so.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or the authority, if any, under which it is
executed (or a notarially, certified copy of such power of attorney) must be deposited with Computershare
Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited, c/o The Pavillons, Bridgewater Road, Bristol, BS99 6ZY by no later
than 11:00 BST on 20 May 2019 before the time for holding the Meeting or adjourned Meeting or the taking
of a poll at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote.

A member must first have his or her name entered on the register of members not later than 11:00 BST on
20 May 2019. If the Meeting is adjourned, members entered on the register not later than 11:00 BST on 20
May 2019 before the time fixed for the adjourned Meeting shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting.
Changes to entries in the register after that time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any holders
to attend and vote at the Meeting.

If you do not intend to attend the Meeting please complete and return the form of proxy as soon as possible.
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Registered Office Address: 1 Le Truchot, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WD

Registration Number: 45676

FORM OF PROXY

For use at the Annual General Meeting of Golden Prospect Precious Metals Limited (the ‘Company’) to be

[/We (block capitals please)

of (address)

held on 22 May 2019 at 11:00 BST

being (a) member(s) of the Company appoint the Chairman of the meeting or (see note 1)

As mylour proxy and, on a poll, to vote for mefus on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held at 1 Le Truchot, 3¢ Floor, St. Peter Port, Guernsey on 22 May 2019 at 11:00 BST and any adjournment
thereof.

Please indicate with an ‘X' in the spaces provided how you wish your votes to be cast on the resolutions specified.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

For

Against Abstain

. To receive the Company's Annual Report and Audited Financial

Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

To re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor to the Company until the
conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are
laid before the Company.

To authorise the Directors of the Company to determine the
remuneration of the auditor.

To re-elect Mr Graeme Ross as a Director of the Company who
retires by rotation in accordance with Article 18.3 of the Articles
of Association of the Company.

To re-elect Mr Malcolm Burne as a Director of the Company
who retires by rotation in accordance with Article 18.3 of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

To re-elect Mr Robert King as a Director of the Company who
retires by rotation in accordance with Article 18.3 of the Articles
of Association of the Company.

To re-elect Mr Toby Birch as a Director of the Company who
retires by rotation in accordance with Article 18.3 of the Articles
of Association of the Company.
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For Against Abstain

8. To authorise the Company, in accordance with Article 4.8 of the
Articles of Association of the Company and The Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended (the ‘Law’), to make market
purchases of its own ordinary shares of £0.001 each (‘Ordinary
Shares’), such authorisation conditional upon the Ordinary
Shares of the Company continuing to be admitted to listing on
The International Stock Exchange (‘CISEAL’) and, with the
exception of a tender offer or partial offer being made to all
holders of Ordinary Shares on the same terms:-

8.1 the maximum number of Ordinary Shares hereby authorised
to be purchased shall be up to 15% of the Company’s existing
issued ordinary share capital;

8.2 the minimum price (exclusive of expenses)which may be
paid for the Ordinary Shares to be £0.001 per Ordinary Share;
8.3 the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) payable by the
Company for the Ordinary Shares to be 5% above the average
of the closing middle market quotations (as derived from
Bloomberg) of an Ordinary Share for the five (5) consecutive
dealing days preceding the date on which the purchase is made;
8.4 the authority (unless previously renewed or revoked) will
expire at the end of the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held in 2020 or, if earlier, the date being fifteen months
from the date of passing of this resolution;

8.5 the Company may make a contract to purchase its own
Ordinary Shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to
the expiry of such authority which will or may be executed or
wholly or partly executed after the expiry of such authority, and
may make a purchase of its own Ordinary Shares in pursuance
of any such contract; and

8.6 the purchase price for any Ordinary Shares may be paid by
the Company out of distributable profits or out of capital and
share premium or otherwise to the fullest extent permitted by
The Companies (Financial Assistance for Acquisition of Own
Shares) Ordinance, 1998.

Subject to any voting instructions so given, the proxy will vote, or may abstain from voting, on any resolution as
he/she may think fit.

Signature

Dated this day of 2019
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PROXY NOTES

53

If you so desire you may delete the words ‘Chairman of the meeting’ and insert the name of your own choice
of proxy, who need not be a member of the Company. Please initial such alteration.

A corporation must execute the proxy under its commeon seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney
duly authorised.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but the names of all the joint
holders should be stated. Joint holders are not permitted to vote independently of each other and must vote
as one.

To appoint more than one proxy to vote in relation to different shares within your holding, you may
photocopy this form. Please indicate on each copy of the form the proxy's name and the number of shares
in relation to which they are authorised to act as your proxy (which, in aggregate, should not exceed the
number of shares held by you).

Please also indicate if the appointment of a proxy is one of multiple appointments being made. All such
forms should be signed and returned together in the same envelope. Appointing a proxy shall not preclude
a member from attending and voting in person at the meeting.

If this form is returned without indication as to how the person appointed proxy shall vote, he will exercise
his discretion as to how he votes or whether he abstains from voting.

To be valid, this form of proxy, duly executed together with the power of atforney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, must be deposited at
Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited, c/o The Pavillions, Bridgewater Road, Bristol, BS99
6ZY by no later than 11:00 BST on 20 May 2019 before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting or the taking of a poll at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote.

No member shall be entitled to be present or take part in any proceedings or vote either personally or by
proxy at any meeting unless all calls due from him have been paid.
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